SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
April 2, 2009
9:12 a.m

9:12: 05 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Stedman called the Senate Finance Comm ttee neeting
to order at 9:12 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Lyman Hof f man, Co-Chair
Senator Bert Stedman, Co-Chair
Senator Charlie Huggins, Vice-Chair
Senator Johnny Ellis

Senat or Donny O son

Senat or Joe Thomas

MEMBERS ABSENT

None
ALSO PRESENT

Karen Rehfeld, Director, Ofice of Managenent and Budget,
Ofice of the Governor; Dan Spencer, Director, Division of
Adm ni strative Services, Departnment of Public Safety; Larry
Persily, Staff, Representative Hawker; Jo Ellen Hanrahan,
Anal yst, O fice of Budget and Mnagenent, Ofice of the
Governor; Chris Ashenbrenner, Council on Donestic Violence
and Sexual Assault; Alison Elgee, Assistant Conm ssioner,
Fi nance and Managenent Services, Departnent of Health and
Soci al Servi ces; M ke  Maher, Director, Division of
Adm ni strative Servi ces, Department of Revenue; Bryan
Butcher, Director, Government Affairs and Public Rel ations,
Al aska Housi ng Fi nance Corporation, Departnment O Revenue.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

John Mallonee, Acting Director, Child Support Enforcenent
Di vi sion, Departnment of Revenue.

SUMVARY

SB 161 "An Act making supplenental appropriations and
capital appropriations; anending appropriations;
and providing for an effective date.”

#sb161

Senat e Finance Committee 1 04/02/09 9:12 A M



SENATE BILL NO. 161

"An Act making supplenental appropriations and capital
appropriations; anmending appropriations; and providing
for an effective date."

SB161 was HEARD and HELD in Conmmttee for further
consi derati on.

9:12:14 AM

KAREN REHFELD, DI RECTOR, OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDCET,
OFFI CE OF THE GOVERNOR, nentioned the itens not included in
SB 161 known as the Economic Stinmulus Bill. She noted that
the O fice of Managenent and Budget (OVB) gl eaned additi onal
information regarding the requirenents for receipt and
expenditure of the federal funds along with application
eligibility including costs and long term benefits for
Al aska. Initially the Governor presented the |legislation
wi t hout many of the federal stinulus itens due to questions
regarding fund requirenments. She remarked that the Governor
submtted the required certification identified as Section
1607 Certification dated the 31" of March, 2009 in order to
nmeet the tinelines required by law. The |egislature adopted
a resolution regarding acceptance of federal stinulus funds.
She suggested the next step is the appropriation bill. She
enphasi zed the Governor’s appreciation for the legislature’s
efforts during public hearings on SB 161

Co-Chair Stednman infornmed that the first order of business
was Page 3, Item #26 of the spreadsheet titled "lItens Not
| ncluded in the March 19 Economc Stinmulus Bill" dated March
30, 2009 (Copy on File).

9:18:39 AM

DAN SPENCER, DI RECTOR, DI VI SION OF ADM NI STRATI VE SERVI CES,

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLI C SAFETY, discussed item #26 identifying
it as a $50 thousand itemoriginating fromthe nmunicipality
of Anchorage as a direct grant from the Departnent of
Justice. He explained that funds are used to enhance |aw
enforcenment’s response to online child victimzation and
child pornography cases. He expected additional stinulus
funds of $400 thousand to flow directly to the Minicipality
of Anchorage. The fundi ng enconpasses overtinme and supplies,

but not additional personnel. He anticipated a fina

agreenent with the Municipality of Anchorage for receipt of
federal stimulus funds.

Co-Chair Stedman asked for clarification of the additiona
personnel issue. M. Spencer responded that existing funding
covers overtinme, supplies, and travel costs related to the
conbined effort of the Mnicipality of Anchorage and the
Department of Public Safety’s work on the enforcenent of

Senat e Finance Committee 2 04/02/09 9:12 A M



internet crinmes against children, yet neglects the inclusion
of a personnel position.

Co- Chair Stedman recounted concern regarding the budget and
the potential of "strings attached" or unfunded mandates to
the recei pt of federal econom c stinmulus funds. He inquired
about the departnment’s position on potential budgetary
i npacts. M. Spencer replied that the departnent did not see
potential budgetary inpacts in receiving federal stimnulus
f unds.

Co- Chair Hof f man understood that the only eligible applicant
is the Anchorage police departnent. He asked why the police
departnment sub-grants the funds to the state as opposed to
using the funds thenselves. M. Spencer answered that the
Anchorage police department currently enploys a simlar
grant. The economc stinmulus grant allows the Anchorage
police departnment to enpl oy additional enforcenment staff.

9:21:47 AM

Co-Chair Stedman asked if the departnent found unknown
"strings attached” to item #26. M. Spencer repeated that
the departnment did not find any "strings attached" to item
#26.

LARRY PERSI LY, STAFF, REPRESENTATI VE HAVWKER, addressed item
#26 at $50 thousand stating that he and the House Finance
Comm ttee found no "strings attached.™

Senator Thomas stated that the concern about item #26 was
the requirenent of state noney supplanting federal stinulus
noney. He asked if the departnent’s opinion changed
regarding the issue. M. Spencer responded that the
departnent’s opinion about the item changed due to the
reducti on of allowable overtine conpensati on.

9:24:15 AM

M. Spencer addressed item #27 and funding for the Al aska
State Troopers. Item #27 addresses personal service costs of
new trooper positions, travel, training, supplies and sub-
grants to other state agencies and to wunits of |ocal
government for the funding of projects supporting the
approved Justice Assistance Gant (JAG. The funds include
$5, 821,000 for the JAG program with $1, 282,000 specifically
directed to local governnents. This fornula is simlar to
that of current grants received on regular annual prograns.
The plan passes $150 thousand annually to the Departnent of
Law (DOL) with the expectation of one attorney position. A
smal | amount of funding is designated to the crinme lab for
supplies and equipnent related to the investigations. A
small sum is related to internet crime, but the focus is
sexual assault and child abuse cases. The departnent’s

Senat e Finance Committee 3 04/02/09 9:12 A M



preference is that new positions exhibit their worth by the
end of three years and thereby continued. The commtnent is
for long range planning and investigative resources. All
necessary trooper positions are taken. Added positions
i ncrease patrol and investigative capacity providing
proactive | aw enforcenent.

9: 29: 53 AM

M. Spencer informed that the funds in item #27 are directed
toward equi pnent costs, sof twar e i nprovenent s, and
muni ci palities. He stated that the Governor and the
| egi sl ature nmake decisions regarding use of the funds. He
noted that the application is due April 9, 2009.

Co- Chai r St edrman request ed clarification about t he
application process. He asked if the application process was
covered in the Governor’s letter to President Barack Cbana.
M. Spencer responded that the Governor’s letter to the
President nentioned ongoing work with the |egislature on
various programs. Co-Chair Stedman clarified that the
application was not yet submtted.

Co- Chair Hoffman requested the portion of donestic violence
and sexual assault efforts focused on Al aska's rural areas.
M. Spencer answered that item #27 prioritizes areas of high
donmestic and sexual assault incidence giving rural areas
significant focus.

9: 32: 36 AM

Co-Chair Hoffman stated that he recognized the severity of
chi | dhood sexual abuse and opined that the control of
al cohol abuse is equally inportant. He opined that alcoho
abuse is the root of both the sexual abuse and donestic
vi ol ence problens. He supported the use of one tinme funds to
stem the flow of alcohol into rural areas thereby reducing
the incidence of domestic violence, child sexual abuse, and
virtually all other crimes in rural Al aska.

M. Spencer acknow edged the issues expressed by Co-Chair
Hof f man. Co-Chair Hoffman opined that the enforcenent of
al cohol abuse prograns is passive. He requested increased
enforcenent in the Bethel area. M. Spencer admitted that he
| acked information regardi ng Bet hel .

9: 35:48 AM

Co-Chair Hoffman repeated that |aw enforcenent efforts in
the Bethel area renmain inadequate and i neffective.

Co-Chair Stedman requested the opinion of M. Persily on

item #27. M. Persily announced that $5.8 nillion are
allotted to the state, with $1.25 mllion designated to

Senat e Finance Committee 4 04/02/09 9:12 A M



| ocal governments. The $3.8 nmillion for 19 different cities
and boroughs in the state is an allocation set by the
Departnment of Justice. He stated that the nunicipalities
have a My 18, 2009 deadline for funds not subject to
| egi sl ative appropriation. The funds travel directly to the
muni ci palities including Fairbanks, Anchorage, Bet hel ,
Wasilla, Palnmer, North Slope Borough, Dillingham and Sitka.

Co-Chair Stedman noted concern about the grow ng operating
account. He asked if the departnment increased the trooper
count by six or nore over the next several years through its
natural evolution, or were the changes contenplated in
pl anni ng sessions with the Departnent of Public Safety. M.
Spencer answered that the expectation is for |ong range
pl anni ng sessions in the upcom ng sumer. Based on the crine
rates observed and required allocations for investigative
resources, the positions are necessary.

Co-Chair Stedman clarified that the departnent requires the
positions regardless of the stinmulus package. He asked the
amount of positions were available in the public safety
trooper arena. M. Spencer answered that vacant trooper
positions do not exist.

9: 38: 53 AM

Co-Chair Stedman noted the process confuses |egislators and
citizens. The Governor anmended the 2010 budget. He cited the
1,957 increase of full time enployees across the state. He
stated that 6 trooper positions and one attorney position
remai n i nbedded in the overall evolution of enpl oyee growt h.
This equates 392 new positions added each year since 2007

He opined that the stinulus package addresses approxi mately
18 new positions. The natural evolution adds nearly 400
positions each year. The potential increase in the operating
budget results from "strings attached" to the federal
stimulus dollars. The state increases its enployee count by
2 percent each year. The proposed plan inpacts the enpl oyee
count mninmally and the six troopers requested exist in next
year’'s operating budget request regardless of the stinulus
package.

9:41: 48 AM

M. Spencer agreed that a request for position funding is
required pending the disapproval of federal stinulus funds
for the requested positions. Co-Chair Stedman appreciated
the public discussion prior to inportant policy decisions.

M. Spencer addressed item #28 or victim assistance fornul a
grants of $545 thousand for the Council on Domestic Violence
and Sexual Assault. The council submtted an application.
The funding allocations are statutorily mandated. The focus
areas are determ ned by the council subject to the guidance

Senat e Finance Committee 5 04/02/09 9:12 A M



fromthe Governor and the |egislature through a conpetitive
grant application process.

9:45: 32 AM

M. Persily stated that a review perforned by the House
Finance Conmttee identified item #28 as a "one tine" boost
with strong support. No problens or questions were
identified. Co-Chair Stednman asked about "strings attached"
to item #28. M. Persily responded that reporting
requi renents were the only identified "strings attached."”

Co-Chair Stedman asked about the application process for
both itens #28 and #29. M. Persily answered that the
applications for itenms #28 and #29 were subm tted.

Co-Chair Stedman nentioned the requested enployee count
increase of 18-20 positions with the stinulus package. The
amended budget for FY10 includes a 148 position count
i ncrease. He encouraged focus on the scale of the stimnulus
package request, which is counter to press information.

JO ELLEN HANRAHAN, ANALYST, OFFI CE OF BUDGET AND MANAGEMENT,
OFFICE OF THE GOVERNCOR, addressed reporting and tracking
requi renments. She opined that the | evel of tracking increase
requires nore detail when dealing with federal stinulus
funds. She nentioned that the potential wuses of fiscal
stabilization funds to offset the cost of the increased
reporting and tracking requirenents. She inforned that the
requirenents are frequently beyond that which is normally
required in a federal program

9:49: 42 AM

M. Spencer nentioned three other conpetitive grant prograns
not included on the spreadsheet. The prograns with the
Department of Justice include counterparts in the federa
stimulus program This particular program allocates $1
billion nationwide for additional police officers in the
event that police officers are dismssed due to state or
| ocal budget reductions. This program cones wth an
i medi ate cost to grant applicants. He opined that there
were many "strings attached.”

9: 53: 06 AM

Co- Chair Hof fman asked about the application process. M.
Spencer responded that the process includes a proposal. The
scoring criteria for the stinmulus bill are unknown. He
specul ated that Alaska is ineligible for the grant.

M. Spencer expressed interest in yet another funding

source. This item addresses rural drug crines, particularly
those wth a federal prosecuti on nexus. The third

Senat e Finance Committee 6 04/02/09 9:12 A M



application enconpasses rural |law enforcenent. The goal is
three troopers for Village Public Safety Oficers (VPSSO
oversight. The operating budget proposal presented by the
Gover nor and adopt ed by t he committee i ncl uded
recommendati ons for 15 additional VPSO positions in FY10 and
the proposal from the task force requests another 15
positions in FY1l.

9:56:41 AM

Senator Thomas asked if the justice assistance grants
include additional costs. M. Spencer answered that the
grants for the justice assistance cover all of the costs.

Senator Thomas asked about denied applications for the
Police Grants Program and the |ack of concern about "strings
attached" during the prior application processes.

Senator O son addressed itens #3 and #4 and funds addressing
victims through the Council for Donestic Violence. He
i nquired about the anmount of noney allocated for shelters.
M. Spencer answered that a significant amount, perhaps nost
funds aid shelters for the victinms of donestic violence.
Senator O son asked if approximately fifty percent of the
funds will go to shelters in need of funding.

9:59:18 AM

M. Spencer stated that the requirenents of the program
identify the types of services eligible for funding, wth
nost services in Al aska provided by the shelters.

CHRI S ASHENBRENNER, COUNCI L ON DQOVESTI C VI OLENCE AND SEXUAL
ASSAULT, announced that a great mmjority of the eligible
funds exist for victinms service prograns. The STOP vi ol ence
agai nst wonmen formula  grant program addresses |aw
enforcement, prosecution, and victim services including
shel ters.

Senator Ellis stated that the A aska Wnen's Aid in Cisis
shelter in Anchorage nust close w thout available funding.
He understood that the shelter required a new boiler. He
requested information regarding an energency fund for a
shelter in need of a new boiler.

Ms. Ashenbrenner responded that capital inprovenent or
energency funds are unavailable to wonen’s shelters. She
advocated for the wuse of federal funds for energency
pur poses funding energy efficiency in the shelters. The use
of "one time" funds in this way provides savings to the
organi zations in the long run.

Co-Chair Hoffman understood that funds exist for rural
areas. He opined that the federal stinmulus package negl ected

Senat e Finance Committee 7 04/02/09 9:12 A M



rural Al aska. M. Spencer requested clarification about the
fund source that Co-Chair Hoffrman referred to.

10: 03: 16 AM

Co- Chai r Hof f man  expl ai ned that he understood the
flexibility of local governments applying for funds. He felt
that rural Al aska received inadequate attention under the
stimul us package submtted by the state.

M. Spencer answered that investigators are responsible for
the entire state. The investigators travel as needed to all
regi ons of Al aska, including the rural areas.

Co-Chair Hoffman opined that the state should take a
regi onal approach to addressing the issues.

M. Spencer offered an upcom ng response for the conmmttee
regarding the issue of rural inclusion in federal stinulus
applications. Co-Chair Stedman stated that the conmttee
woul d anxiously await the response.

10: 05: 42 AM

Ms. Hanrahan noved on to the Departnment of Revenue’'s
requests. The state receives federal funding for the state
match allowng eligibility for additional state dollars. The
American recovery act allows a state use of federal
incentive receipts as a portion of their state match. The
state is also eligible for additional federal funds in the
formof earned incentive receipts. The American Recovery Act
allows the Child Support Services D vision use of the
existing federal incentive receipts as state match. The
state is eligible for $3.2 mllion in the next two years.

Co-Chair Stedman asked about the portion referred to by M.
Hanr ahan. Ms. Hanrahan answered the transaction allows the
division to receive $2.7 mllion in econom ¢ stinmulus funds
reduci ng recei pt supported services. Co-Chair Stednman asked
the identifying nunber listed on the handout. He asked if
this was the item marked $585 thousand. Ms. Hanrahan
answered that both the unmarked itemand item #30 acconpli sh
the sane goal, but the transactions for technical budgetary
reasons nust list separately. In addition, a $400 mllion
general fund match is required.

M. Persily clarified that the original FY10 budget request
submtted by the Governor requested state funds to repl ace
the loss of federal funds. For at |east 15 years prior to
2008, the federal governnment allowed states the use of these
incentive nonies for successful child support operations.
The federal governnment allowed states use of the federa
incentive noney in a tw for one matching federal dollars

Senat e Finance Committee 8 04/02/09 9:12 A M



for child support operations. In FY0O8, a change in federa
| aw took affect and it is no | onger possible to turn federal
dollars into matching funds. This budget request for state
funds makes up for that |oss by reducing the need for state
nmoney in child support operations.

10:11: 07 AM

Ms. Hanrahan noted that this is nmerely a switching of funds
and there is little change in total fund authorization for
the Child Support Services D vision. Co-Chair Stedman
detailed that the state nerely supplants state funds while
recei ving sonme federal funds. Ms. Hanrahan acknow edged t hat
the state reduces receipt quoted services and regular
federal authorization. Co-Chair Stedman asked about the
application for these two itens. Ms. Harnahan admtted that
she | acked i nformation about the application process for the
two itens. She remarked that federal incentive receipts
remain eligible as state match for the period of Cctober 1,
2008 t hrough Septenber 30, 2010.

JOHN MALLONEE, ACTING DI RECTOR, CHI LD SUPPORT ENFORCEMENT
Dl VI SI ON, DEPARTIVENT CF REVENUE (testified Vi a
tel econference), stating that no formal application exists.
He informed that the grant is open ended and based on act ual
expendi t ures.

Co- Chair Hof f man asked about the sections for child support
services. He inquired about applying for one section al one.
M. Mallonee answered that the application requires nultiple
secti ons.

10: 14: 22 AM

Ms. Hanrahan expl ained that the federal |anguage expires in
2010. The federal incentive funds then expire as state match
for the Child Support Services Division.

Co-Chair Stedman introduced item #35 and the Al aska Housi ng
Fi nance Corporation (AHFC) State Energy Program

BRYAN BUTCHER, DI RECTOR, GOVERNVMENT AFFAIRS AND PUBLIC
RELATI ONS, ALASKA HOUSI NG FI NANCE CORPORATI ON, DEPARTMENT OF
REVENUE, discussed item #35 and the $28 nillion contingent
on the application of a statew de energy code. The United
States Departnent of Energy (DOE) funds for State Energy

Program ( SEP) speci al proj ects such as bui | di ng
t echnol ogi es, codes and standards, wind and power
technol ogies, renewable energy for renbte areas, and
transportation technol ogies. He explained the state has

eight years to conply and conpliance following the eight
year period neans that a mninum of ninety percent of the
state is deened energy efficient. He stated that the Al aska
Energy Authority (AEA) is influential. He stated that the

Senat e Finance Committee 9 04/02/09 9:12 A M



money is strictly residential developing standards for
public and comercial buildings. Since 1992, AHFC has
conplied with the building efficiency standards by statute
and financing cannot occur with out neeting those codes. He
suggested that the policy decision splitting the policy code
lies in the hands of the |egislature and the Governor.

10: 20: 18 AM

Co- Chair Stedman asked about potential "strings" attached

He nentioned the requirenent of achieving 90 percent energy
efficiency in eight years. He requested the difference
between commercial and residential and how the arrival of
ninety percent efficiency 1is calculated. M. But cher
answered that the percentage of energy efficiency is
determ ned by square footage and applies to hones built or
renovati ons preforned using federal funds.

M. Persily inforned that the |law states that w thin eight
years of enactment or 2017, at |east ninety percent of new
and renovated commerci al and residential square footage nust
conply wth energy efficiency standards. This [ unps
residential and commercial together.

10: 22: 29 AM

Co- Chair Stednman asked about whether the expected changes
are large or small. M. Butcher responded that the
residential aspect includes nbst comunities that have
bui l di ng codes including Anchorage, Fairbanks, and Kenai.
Many rural Alaskan |oans are handled by Al aska Housing
Fi nance Corporation (AHFC). Co-Chair Stedman understood that
the star rating system was obsol ete.

M. Persily added that Ilarge comercial buildings in
Anchorage neet the energy efficiency standards required by
t he Act.

Co-Chair Stedman asked about the state neeting hall in
Anchorage and its |evel of energy efficiency. Senator Ellis
informed that state funds were not used for the Dena’'ina
convention center in Anchorage. M. Persily offered to
research the current standards of the building.

10: 24: 41 AM

M. Butcher informed that AHFC addresses residential aspects
of the item Mst banks have interest in borrowing on
buil dings with efficiency standards already net.

Co- Chair Stedman asked how burdensonme the "strings attached”
with item #35 are to Alaskan citizens. M. Butcher answered
that the cost of a rating is $300 required to obtain an AHFC
| oan. He stated that he had been told by builders that $5-8

Senat e Finance Committee 10 04/02/09 9:12 A M



t housand nust be spent on an average building to qualify as
energy efficient.

Co- Chair Stednman asked about building codes. M. Hanrahan
answered that 13 comunities in Alaska require building
codes. Anchorage and Fairbanks are now upgraded with the
energy building code. The American Recovery Act insists on
using the 2009 energy codes. She stated that the cost for
the inspectors to travel is covered by an energy rater for
40 out of 385 comunities. Co-Chair Stedman requested a |i st
of the stated figures. Ms. Hanrahan agreed to conply.

Co- Chair Stedman asked about buil ding codes and whet her nost
nmetropolitan areas are under the new building codes. M.
Hanr ahan answered that only two comunities have an energy
code in force.

10: 28: 14 AM

Co-Chair Stedman stated that Ketchi kan, Wangell, Sitka, and
Pet ersburg have building codes. He asked about South East
Al aska and the existing building codes.

Ms. Hanrahan stated that a building code is different from
an energy code. She listed the conmmunities with building
codes as Anchorage, Juneau, Mat Su, Fai r banks, Kenai
Ket chi kan, Kodi ak, Nonme, Palner, Petersburg, Valdez, and
W angel |, and Skagway.

Co-Chair Stedman requested a breakdown from AHFC and their
portion of the building and energy code requirenents.

10: 30: 14 AM

Senator Thomas realized that resistance to the expansion of
building and energy codes exists. He inquired about
accepting federal funds wth the expectation of saving state
nmoney in the long term M. Butcher proposed the question
"is the benefit of the energy code worth the state expense
and inconvenience.”" He opined that this program required
addi tional information.

Co-Chair Hoffman asked about new construction funds. He
asked if the Dblueprints nust neet the new requirenents in
addition to an energy rating for verification. M. Butcher
responded that the state nust submt an energy rating wth
proper paperwrk to AHFC confirmng the four star plus
rating.

Co-Chair Hoffman asked if the requirenents applied to new

construction. M. Butcher responded that the requirenents
apply to new construction and renovati on.

Senat e Finance Committee 11 04/02/09 9:12 A M



Co-Chair Stedman asked if this applied to all new
residential construction or only that financed through AHFC

10: 34: 04 AM

M. Butcher answered that any new construction requires the
state energy standard.

Co- Chair Stednman asked about a newy built recreation cabin
and whether that would require building to the energy
efficient codes.

M. Butcher stated that AHFC finances owner occupi ed hones,
not recreational hones.

M. Persily stated that the research in House Finance shows
that if the state adopts an energy efficiency code, the
state could allow exenptions for cabins wthout running
water or electricity. Co-Chair Stedman asked about the
exi sting program and conplinentary synergy existing wth
that which is already in place for Al aska.

M. Butcher suggested that the residential aspect requires
little change, but the comrercial side is unfamliar.

Co-Chair Stedman asked iif the $20 mllion would be
suppl anted by these federal stinulus funds.

10: 37: 00 AM

Ms. Hanrahan stated that there are no exenptions from the
law for the state. She opined that ninety percent conpliance
with energy requirenents was extrenely high. She explai ned
that the law did not state the requirenent based on square
footage, but instead on the requirenent of ninety percent
conpliance of new construction or renovated space. The
measurenent of percentage whether it is square footage,
popul ation, or nunber of wunits is yet unknown. Final
guidance is not yet available from the Federal Governnent
regarding this program

Co- Chair Hof fman addressed high energy costs in Al aska. He
suggested that Al aska may conply, as opposed to states with
warnmer climates. M. Persily added that the energy code | aw
suggests that states nust neet or exceed either the
standards for the international energy conservation code or
achi eve greater energy savings.

Co-Chair Hoffrman asked if funds are redirected to energy
projects in other states if Al aska chooses not to accept
them He inquired if Alaska mght receive additional funds
that are not accepted by other states. Ms. Hanrahad did not
under stand t he questi on.

Senat e Finance Committee 12 04/02/09 9:12 A M



Co-Chair Hoffman restated the question "if other states
forgo their dollars, can Al aska access then?" He explained
t he advant age of accessing uncl ai med stimulus dollars.

10: 41: 38 AM

Ms. Hanrahan answered that she was unsure whether unused
funds are allocated to other states. She prom sed a follow
up report to the conmttee.

Senator Thomas inquired about proof of ninety percent
conpliance and a potential penalty for lack of conpliance.
M. Butcher stated that a portion of the funds in item #35
devel op software allow ng tracking of conpliance |evels.

M. Persily stated that he had a conversation with a nenber
of the departnment of energy headquarters who presented the
question "what if Alaska is at 70 percent conpliance in
ei ght years."

Ms. Hanrahan stated that she receives different answers from

various sources encouraging conservative decisions and
witten docunentation fromlegal council.

10: 43: 44 AM

Co-Chair Stedrman addressed item #36 and weat herization. M.
Butcher inforned that the AHFC weatherization program
assists |l ow and noderate incone famlies in attaining decent
and affordable housing though the weatherization and
rehabilitation of existing hones. Watherization provides
for fire safety, furnace and electrical repairs, education,
chimey and woodstove repairs, and the installation of
egress w ndows during bedroom w ndow replacenent. He noted
that $18 million is adm nistered along with the $200 nillion
received | ast year fromthe | egislature. The funds were used
to increase the limt from 150 to 200 percent of the Federal
Poverty Limt (FPL) upgrading the definition of |ow incone.
The previous anobunt of federal funds placed into a hone was
$2500 currently updated to $6500. The funds are adm nistered
as a portion of the $200 million. The programis exenpt from
Davi s-Bacon wages because they are cost prohibitive.
Currently, the exenption is questioned.

Co- Chair Stednman addressed potential repairs and the inpact
of Davi s- Bacon wages.

M. Butcher stated that the wages apply internally to the
five weatherization providers responsible for energy audits.
The consuner hiring a contractor is not affected.

Co-Chair Stedman asked if contractors pay Davi s- Bacon wages.
M. Butcher rem nded that the exenption currently exists.

Senat e Finance Committee 13 04/02/09 9:12 A M



10: 48: 09 AM

Senator Thonmas suggested that this proves an excellent
opportunity to change and spread the noney around. M.
Hanr ahan addressed the Davi s-Bacon wage issue as a national
issue that is applicable to all funds spent for the Anerican
Recovery Act nust neet the Davis-Bacon Act. The federal OVB
is currently addressing the issue.

Co-Chair Hof fman asked about the admnistration’s position
on the acceptance of the weatherization dollars. M.
Hanr ahan answered that the Governor’s position is unchanged.
Her belief is that these are itens that increase the budget
and place a burden on Alaskans, but remain open for
di scussion with the |egislature.

Co-Chair Hoffman asked the admnistration’s position
regardi ng buil ding code requirenments. Ms. Hanrahan responded
that all requests are available for discussion by the
| egi sl ature.

10: 50: 32 AM

M. Butcher addressed item #37 and the inplenentation of
energy efficiency and conservation block grants. The U S.
DCE funds for energy efficiency and conservation activities
for comunities, i ncl udi ng but not [imted to
devel opi ng/ i npl enenti ng an ener gy ef ficiency and
conservation strategy. The DOCE retain technical consultant
services to assist in the developnment of such a strategy.
He nentioned the varying grants. The anobunt of funds has
been anmended to $9.5 mllion. In addition, $4.3 mllion of
direct grants exist through nmunicipalities.

M. Persily expanded that the |aw states that 60 percent of
the $9.5 million allocation nust be granted to communities
that do not qualify for funding directly from the DCE He
stated that there are 20 comunities receiving funding
directly from DOE. M. Butcher noted that two percent was
designated for Indian tribes and two percent is conpetitive.
M. Persily stated that the funds going directly to the
communities, the $4.3 mllion is not subject to the state’s
application or going through the |egislature.

Co-Chair Hoffman asked how the anmount was determ ned
t hr oughout the communities. M. Persily answered that it was
t hrough federal |aw or allocation.

10: 53: 06 _AM

Co-Chair Stedman recessed until 1:30

10: 54: 06 AM RECESSED
1: 37: 30 PM RECONVENED

Senat e Finance Committee 14 04/02/09 9:12 A M



M. Persily informed that the new Dena’ina Convention center
in Anchorage does indeed conform to energy code standards.
He spoke with the engineer of record for the new building
who expl ai ned that the standards have becone commonpl ace in
the industry and tend to save noney.

Co-Chair Stedman began with the Departnment of Health and
Soci al Servi ces.

ALl SON ELGEE, ASSI STANT COW SSI ONER, FI NANCE AND MANAGEMENT
SERVI CES, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND SOCI AL  SERVI CES
addressed item #12 regarding health information technol ogy.
She spoke to the concept of transitioning providers to
electronic nedical records while providing an exchange
environment where nedical records are safely transferred
from one entity to another while avoiding duplication of
expensive testing. The $2 million itemis a placehol der. The
itemis an area of the economc stinmulus funding with little
provi ded guidance. She stated that little information is
available from the federal governnment regarding potential
"strings attached.™

Ms. El gee stated that she was unaware of "strings attached.™
The tinme horizon is longer than other itens of the Economc
Stirmulus bill as it is available through 2015. The proposa
in the bill carries a match rate of ten percent initially
for adm nistrative functions. The match rate then increases
t hroughout the tine horizon by 10 percent per year.

1:41:56 PM

Co-Chair Stedman acknow edged the four positions for item
#12 and the general fund match of $40 thousand, which he
considered "strings attached.” He nentioned that Senator
Paskavan sponsored SB 133 which creates an electronic health
information exchange system He wondered about t he
connecti on between SB 133 and SB 161

Ms. El gee responded that SB 133 addresses a simlar subject
matter, the creation of a health information exchange. The
suggested fiscal note for SB 133 wutilized the Economc
Stinmulus funding. The fiscal note projects the real cost of
creating the informati on exchange wi thout clarification from
the federal government about whether the federal funds are
available to the state. The noney seen on the spreadsheet
(Copy on File) was intended as a placeholder as there is a
significant planning effort in ternms of nmeeting the Health
I nsurance Portability and Accountability Act ( HI PPA)
requirenents involved 1in insuring privacy of patient
records.

Co-Chair Stedman asked if the departnment supports SB 133.
Ms. El gee responded that the departnent supports the concept

Senat e Finance Committee 15 04/02/09 9:12 A M



of SB 133, although she could not nake a statenent regarding
the Econom c Stimulus funding due to all of the unknowns.

1: 44: 30 PM

M. Persily noted that the state admnisters grants for
heal thcare providers across Alaska. One provision of the
stimulus bill is the eligibility of up to $67, 750 per health
care provider for inplenmentation of electronic nedical
records.

Senator O son asked electronic nedical records for rural
Al aska. Ms. Elgee answered that the state recognized
significant band width issues associated with rural Al aska.
She infornmed that anon-profit group; The Al aska Health
Net wor k conducted a study estimating the need of $13 million
as a solution to the band width problens faced by rural
Al aska. M. Persily noted that $7.2 billion in the econonic
stimulus bill are adm nistered as grants or | oan guarantees
for rural areas.

Senator O son asked if conpetitive grants existed anong the
three telecommunications conpanies in Alaska. M. Persily
answered that two federal agencies run the conpetitive grant
pr ogr ans.

1:47: 08 PM

Co-Chair Stedman addressed item #13 and the public
assistance for child care benefits. M. Elgee stated that
the funding includes approximately $4 nillion. One
requi renent states that Alaska may not supplant state
funding with this increase. A portion of the funding nust
targeted quality expansion of infant and toddler care
programs. The balance of funding inproves access to
childcare assistance for rate reinbursenent charged for
childcare or expanding eligibility.

M. Persily stated that the House Finance Commttee had no
probl enms and found no "strings attached” to item #13.

Ms. Elgee addressed item #14 and the public assistance
Suppl emental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP) fornerly
known as the food stanp program Included is an increase in
food stanp benefits for all recipients. The funding
addresses adm nistrative costs for outreach and necessary
program changes. M. Persily noted the l|ack of "strings
attached" to item #14.

1: 50: 27 PM

Ms. Elgee addressed item #15 and the Wnen, Infant, and
Children (WC) nutrition program adm nistered through the
Departnent of Public Assistance. This programeligibility is

Senat e Finance Committee 16 04/02/09 9:12 A M



caseload driven. She estimated the availability of $177
t housand pending Al aska' s eligibility.

M. Persily added that research in the House Finance
Comm ttee showed no negative inpacts or "strings attached.”

Ms. Elgee addressed item #16 and increased funding for
i muni zati on, prevention and well ness, and infection
reduction grants. M. Persily stated that the House Finance
Conmittee found zero "strings attached" mnus the ongoing
i ssue of proper accounting, reporting, and follow ng of the
rul es.

Ms. Elgee addressed item #17, an expansion of the
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act which expands

the state’'s infant | earning program I nfrastructure
i nprovenents such as converting providers to electronic
educati on records and i mpr ovi ng Medi cai d cl aim ng

opportunities are the focus.

M. Persily stated that the House Finance Commttee found no
"strings attached" to item #17.

1: 53: 09 PM

Ms. El gee addressed item #18 and the expansion of the grant
program through the admnistration on aging for hone
delivered and congregate neals provided throughout senior
centers. The anount is $485 thousand adm nistered as grants
to those senior centers already part of the existing
conmmi ssion on aging grant program M. Persily stated that
item #18 remains avail able throughout the federal stimnulus
period only.

1: 54: 06 PM

Co-Chair Stedman introduced item #34 from the Departnent of
Envi ronnment al Conservati on

M KE MAHER, DI RECTCOR, DIVISION OF ADM NI STRATI VE SERVI CES
DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE, addressed item #34 and the Air Non-
poi nt nobil e source stinulus. The itemall ows the departnent
the provision of grants predomnantly to rural areas of
Al aska for diesel emssion reduction. The item allows for
the replacenent of diesel generators, school buss fleets,
and the conversion of vehicles from di esel power to natural
gas or propane. The small program requires no additiona
positions. The program requires grant authority. Co-Chair
Stedman clarified that the grant requires statutory work.

M. Persily stated that this program has avail able funds for
muni ci palities. The purpose of the itemis the reduction of
em ssions and energy savings. Co-Chair Stedman asked if this
was a "one tine" grant. M. Maher responded that additiona

Senat e Finance Committee 17 04/02/09 9:12 A M



funding m ght exist downstream although exact anounts are
unknown.

SB161 was HEARD and HELD in Conmmttee for further
consi derati on.

#
ADJ OURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 1:57 PM

Senat e Finance Committee 18 04/02/09 9:12 A M



